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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF OHIO 

WESTERN DIVISION 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 
and 

CASE No. C-1-91-302 

ST~TE OF OHIO, JUDGE CARL B. RUBIN 

OJ I 

PLAINTIFFS, 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

MAGISTRATE ROBERT A. STEINBERG 

v. 

THE BOARD OF COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS OF 
LAWRENCE COUNTY, OHIO, 

DEFENDANT 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~> 

CONSENT DECREE 

WHEREAS, Plaintiff, United States of America ("United 

States"), on behalf of the United states Environmental Protection 

Aqency ("U.S. EPA"), having filed the Complaint herein on May 9. 

1991, aqainst Defendant, the Board of county Commissioners of 

Lawrence County, Ohio ("the Board" or "the Defendant") alleginq 

violations of the Clean Water Act ("the Act"), 33 u.s.c. S 1251 

§.li A.tUl•i the Board's National Pollutant Discharge Elimination 

Systems Permit No. OPK00002*AD (the "NPDES Permit"), and a 
November 30, 1989,. u.s. EPA Administrative Order ("Administrat1.~ 

the co-Plaintiff State of Ohio was originally ~3-··: 

as a defendant.pursuant to Section J09(e) of the Act, 33 u.s.c ' 

1319(e), and was subsequently t"eatiqned as a Plaintiff; 

WHEREAS, the State of or-.10 filed a cross-claim, which as ' 

result of i:ts realignment was ;::nverted to the State of Ohio·~ 

Complaint herein against the - 1rj on June 4, 1991, alleginq 

..... 
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violations ot the Act, 33 u.s.c. § 1251 et seg., Chapter 6111 of 

the Ohio Revised Code, the NPDES Permit, and the Administrative 

Order; 

WHEREAS, the parties have agreed that settlement of this . 

matter is in the public interest and that entry of this Consent 

Decree ("Decree") without further litigation is the most 

appropriate means of resolving this matter; 

NOW, THEREFORE, without admission QY Defendant of any 

liability, and upon consent of the parties hereto, it is hereby 

ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED as follows: 

I. JQRISDICTION AND VENUE 

1. Thia Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter 

of this action and the parties pursuant to Sections 309 and sos 

of the Clean Water Act, 33 u.s.c. SS 1319 and 1365, and 28 u.s.c. 

SS 1331, 1345 and 1355, and this court's ancillary and pendent 

jurisdiction. Venue i• proper pursuant to 33 u.s.c. S 1319(b), 

28 u.s.c. SS 1391(b), 1393 and l395(b), and Rule II, 3.3 of the 

Local Rul .. of the SOUthern District of Ohio. The United States· 

Complaint filed in.this action, and, solely tor purposes of th~s 

Consent DIU:L .. , the State of Ohio's complaint tiled in this 

action, each stat•• a claim upon which relief can be granted. 

II. APPLICABILITY 
.. 

2. Th• provisions ~f this Decree shall apply to ar.d 

be binding upon th• United St!~es. on behalf of U.S. EPA, the 

State of Ohio, on behalf of ~~e ~~~o Environmental Protection 

---



' 
> 

,1 
__ ,. ,J 

- J -

Agency ("Ohio EPA"), and the Board and its successors and 

assigns. The provisions of this Decree shall also apply to and 

be binding upon the commissioners of the Board of county· 

Commissioners in their representative capacity as commissioners 

ot the Board. The Board shall provide a copy of this Consent 

Decree to each contractor hired to complete any plans, reports( 

construction, remedial maintenance, or any other obligations in 

this Decree or resulting from the activdties required by this 

Decree, and shall condition all contracts entered into hereunder 

upon performance of the activities in conformity with the terms 

of this Consent Decree. The Board or its contractors shall 

provide written notice of the Consent Decree to all 

subcontractors hired to perform any portion ot the activities 

required by this Consent Decree. The Board shall nonetheless be 

responsible for ensuring that their contractors and 

subcontractors perform the activities required hereunder in 

accordance with thi• Con•ent Decree. 

3. The Board shall provide a copy ot this Decree tQ 

all of it• officer• and members, to all persons responsible for 

the operation of its publicly owned treatment works ("POTW") . i -

to any aa1X:••sor owner or operator of the POTW prior to trans:~~ 

of that ownership or operation ~nterest. In the event the Bc3~ ! 

proposes to sell or transfer re~l property or operations sub:~-· 

to this Decree, it shall adv•se the proposed purchaser or 

transferee ot the existence:: :~•S Decree and shall notify l. 

parties to this Decree of su~- ~~~~osed sale or transfer no~ 
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later than thirty (30) days prior to transfer of ownership, 

operation or other interest. The Board shall condition the 

transfer of ownership, operation, or any other interest ·related 

to the performance of this Decree upon the successful execution 

of the terms and conditions of this Decree. 

III. OBJECTIVES 

4. It is the express purpose of the parties in 

enterinq this Decree to further the objectives of the Clean Water 

Act, as enunciated at Section 101 of the Act, 33 u.s.c. s 1251, 

and the objectives of Chapter 6111 of the Ohio Revised Coda. All 

plans, reports, construction, remedial maintenance, and other 

obliqations in this Decree or resulting from the activities 

required by this Decree shall have the objectives of causing the 

Board to coms into and remain in full compliance with the Clean 

Water Act and Chapter 6111 of the Ohio Revised Code, and the 

provisions ot applicable Federal and State laws and requlations. 

pursuant to an aqreed upon schedule of compliance. 

IV. DEFINITIONS 

5. Unlesa otherwise defined herein, terms used in 

this Dec:r8e shall have the meaning given to those terms in the 

Act, 33 u.s.c. S 1251 et seq., the regulations promulgated 

thereunder at 40 C.P.R. S 401.ll, Chapter 6111 of the Ohio 

Revised Code, th• requlations promulgated under that Chapter. i~1 

any applicable NPDES permit. 

a. "August ~992 SSES" shall mean the Sewer 
system Evaluation survey foC" -:. ... ·.; l l laqe of Proctorville, 
Lawrence county, Ohio conduc~~-1 t>y Shaw, Weiss & DeNaples fc:-
Board and dated August 3, 19~~ 
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b. "Bypass" means the intentional diversion of 
waste streams from any portion of a treatment facility, as 
defined at 40 C.F.R. S 122.41{m). 

c. "Infiltration" means the water entering a 
sewer system and service connections from the ground, through 
such means as, but not limited to, defective pipes, pipe joints, 
con~ections, and manhole walls. 

d. "Inflow"'means the water discharged into a 
sewer system, includinq service connections, from such sources 
as, but not limited to, roof leaders, cellars, yard and area 
drains, foundation drains, cooling water discharges, drains from 
sprinqs and swampy a~eas, manhole covers, cross connections from 
storm sewers and combined sewers, catch basins, storm waters, 
surface run-off, street wash waters, and drainage. 

, e. "Infiltration/Inflow" and "I/I" mean the 
total quantity of water from both infiltration and inflow. 

t. "Joint Stipulation" shall mean the Partial 
Stipulation and consent for the Entry of a Partial Judqment of 
Liability aqainst Defendant Board of county commissioners ot 
Lawrence county, Ohio, which was agreed to by the parties and 
entered by the Court on March 9, 1993. 

g. 
Evaluation Survey 
Ohio conducted by 
March 11, 1993. 

"March 1993 SSES" shall mean the sewer Syste::i 
tor the Village of Chesapeake, Lawrence County. 
Shaw, Weiss & OeNaples for the Board and dated 

h. "NPDES permit" means National Pollutant 
oischarqe Eli•ination System Permit,No. OPK00002*AO (U.S. EPA 
Permit No. OH-0094684) issued to the Board on November 25, 1987, 
and any successive NPDES permits issued to the Board. 

i. "October 1990 SSES" shall mean the Sewer 
System Evaluation survey of Gravity Sewer Tributary to Pump 
statio,n Ko. ,, Lawrence county, Ohio cond~cted by Shaw, Weiss & 
DeNaplea ~or th• Board and dated October,, 1990. 

j. "Overflow" means the unintentional diversion 
of wast• atr .... ·froa any portion of the sewage collection 
system. 

k. "Plaintit~s" shall mean the United States :i! 

America, on behalf ot U.S. EPA, ~nd the State of Ohio, on behalr 
ot Ohio EPA. 

'.l. "SSES"r1et-; 
which is a report specifying ·--

~-er system Evaluation Surve~ 
-~.~~ration and inflow, and ·--



- 6 -

sewer rehabilitation and other improvements necessary to 
eliminate this infiltration and inf low. 

V. COMPLIANCE PROGRAM 

6. No later than four (4) years from the date of 

entry of this Decree, and according to a schedule that meets the 

requirements of this Section V., the Board shall have completed 

the removal of all excessive inflow and infiltration ("I/I") from 

the Board's collection system, by taking all necessary measures 
I 

including, but not limited to, the implementation of all 

recommendations set forth in the October- 1990 SSES, the Auqust 

1992 SSES, and the March 1993 SSES. Implementation of all 

recommendations set forth in the October 1990 SSES, the Auqust 

1992 SSES, and the March 1993 SSES shall be accomplished in 

accordance with the following schedule: 

a. No later than thirty (JO) months from the 
date of entry of this Decree, the Board shal~ 
have implemented all of the recommendations 
set forth in Tabla 7 of the October 1990 SSES 
(attached hereto as Appendix A); 

b. No later.than forty-two (42) months from th• 
date of entry of this Decree, the Board sha:. 
have implemented the manhole remediation 
schedule set forth in Table 4 of the August 
1992 SSES (attached hereto as Appendix B). 
and the storm sewer·improvements set forth 
Table 5 of the August 1992 SSES (attached 
hereto as Appendix C), and completed 
separation of the storm sewers and 
constructlon of new, separate storm sewers 
the Proc::oc:llle area of the collection 
system; and 

c. No later cnan four (4) years from the dat• 
entry or :~:s Decree, the Board shall hav• 
implementej :ne manhole rehabilitation 
schedule ~· :Jrth in Table 1 of the Mar:· 
1993 SSE, 1":Jcned hereto as Appendix C 
complete: · - .. ., l ,mination of the I/I_ so·,: 
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set forth in Tables 2 and 3 of the March 199) 
SSES (attached hereto as Appendix E), 
completed grouting of the sanitary sewer 
joints in the Chesapeake area of the 
collection system, and completed separation 
of the storm sewers from the sanitary sewer 
collection system. 

In the event that the Plaintiffs and the Board disagree over the 

issue or (a) whether the Board has taken all measures necessary 

to complete the removal of all excessive I/I from the Board's 

collection system within four (4) years,from the date of entry of 

this Decree, or (b) whether the Board has implemented all of the 

recommendations sat forth in the October 1990 SSES, the August 

1992 SSES, and the.March 1993 SSES within the deadlines set forth 

above, any party may invoke the procedures set forth in section 

) XII (Dispute Resolution) • 

7. The Board shall use best efforts .to eliminate all 

the private sources of I/I which are set forth"in the October 

1990 SSES, the Auquat 1992 SSES, and the March 1993 SSES. For 

purposes ot thia paragraph, the "best efforts" that the Board is 

required to employ shall include, but is not limited to, (a) 

passaqa ot any new saver ordinances which are necessary to 

eliminate t:be private sources of I/ I; (b)· providing written 

notification to the owners of the private sources that these 

source• JIU9t be alillinated by a specific deadline; (c) inspect1-~ 

the private sources to deteLmi~e whether they have been removed 

by their owner; (d) initiating legal ·action against any owneL .: 

a private source who refuses to eli:ninate the private source ::~ 

I/I; and (e) enforcement of ar, .eqal judgment obtained agairs· 

-, 
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the owner ot a private source of I/I. The private sources of I/I 

are as follows: 

a. October 1990 SSES: The private sources of 
I/I in the October 1990 SSES are listed in 
Table 7 (attached_ hereto as Appendix A) and 
are the following: (1) Septic Tank at 232 Ben 
Street; (2) Downspout.Drain at 224 Ben 
Street; (J) Retaining Wall at 224 Ben Street; 
(4) Downspout Drain at 316 Ben Street; .(5) 
Downspout Drain at 400 Rockwood Avenue; (6) 
Downspout Drain at 410 Rockwood Avenue; (7) . 
Foundation repair at 412 Rockwood Avenue; (8) 

· Lateral repair at 437 Rockwood Avenue; and 
(9) Lateral repair~at Pickett Concrete 
(behind 437 Rockwood Avenue); 

b. hUgust 1992 SSES: The private sources of I/I 
in the August 1992 SSES include all the 
sources of I/I listed in Table 5 (attached 
hereto as.Appendix C), except the following 
sources: (1) Storm Drain on Corner of 
Chestnut & Prichard Streets; (2) Culvert on 
northeast corner of Chestnut & Prichard 
Streets; (J) Culvert on southeast corner of 
Chestnut & Prichard streets; (4) Catch Basi~ 
on corner of State Route 7 & Shirkey Street; 
(5) Catch Basin on State Route 7 next to 
manhole I 405; and (6) Catch Basin on State 
Route 7 across from manhole #405; 

c. Karch 1993 SSES: The private sources of r;: 
in the March 1993 SSES include all of the 
sources listed in Table 3 (attached hereto ~~ 
Appendix E). 

If the Board tail• to eliminate any of the private sources of · 

listed alloYe in accordance with the timeframes required in 

subparagrapb8 6(a), 6(b) or 6(cJ, the Board may petition the 

Plaintiffs for reliet. For eac~ pt""ivate source of I/I for wh.:-

the Board seeks raliet, if the ?la1ntiffs determine that the 

Board did employ "best effor-~s" ~:1 attempting to eliminate th~". 

private source then the Boar-j ~~~.: not be liable for stipulap~ · 

penalties tor tailing to el1-.- ···-:'lat private source o_f I: 
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accordance with the timeframes required in paragraph 6. If, 

however, the Plaintiffs determine that the Board did not employ 

"best efforts", then the Board may invoke the procedur~s set 

forth in Section XII (Dispute Resolution) to dispute the 

Plaintiffs' determination that the Board failed to employ best 

efforts in attempting to eliminate that private source of I/I in 

accordance with the timeframes requi~ed in paragraph 6. 

a. In addition to the requi;t"ements set forth in 

paragraphs 6 and 7 above, the Board shall eliminate the following 

sources of the excessive I/I in accordance with the following 

schedule: 

a. Commencing on the date of en~ry of this 
Decree and except as provided for in 
paragraph 7, the Board shall take all 
measures to ensure full compliance with all 
sewer ordinances that prohibit the discharge 
of clean water into the sewer collection 
system and, as necessary, pass any new sewer 
ordinances necessary to prohibit the 
discharge of clean water into the sewer 
collection system; 

b. No later than four (4) years from the date of 
entry of this Decree, the Board shall 
complete all work necessary for the 
elimination of river intrusion into the 
collection system including, but not lim1tea 
to, raising the electrical controls above ~~e 
100-year flood elevation at pump stations ~ 
and 7. 

In the event the parties disagree over the Board's compliance 

with subparagraphs (a) or (b) above, either party may invoke ~~· 

procedures set forth in Section XII (Dispute Resolution). 

· 9. 1 No later than one ( l) year from the date of en t :- · 

of this Decree, the Board sha l l 1" t: e rm 1. ne whether a SSES for · - -

.-1 • 
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Rome Township area of the collection system ("Rome Township area 

SSES") is needed to eliminate excessive I/I from this area of the 

collection system and is necessary to meet the requirements and 

objectives of this Decree. Within thirty (30) days following 

this determination, the Board shall submit to U.S. EPA and Ohio 

EPA a report identifying in detail the findings of the Board 

regarding the need for a Rome Township area SSES. This report 

shall also include (a) flow monitoring pata from those areas of 

the Rome_Township area served by the aoo uninspected septic 

tanks; and (b) a determination of the likelihood that excessive 

I/I exists in those areas of the Rome Township area served by the 

800 uninspected septic tanks. In the event that the Plaintiffs 

and the B.oard disagree over (a) the issue of whether a Rome 
I 

Township area SSES is needed to eliminate excessive I/I from the 

Rome Township area of the collection system and to meet the 

requirements and objectives ot this Decree, or (b) the issue of 

whether additional information to support such a determination is 

necessary, any party may invoke the procedures set forth in 

Section XII (Dispute Resolution) . 

- If it. i• deter11ined by the Court o_r _the parties otherwise 

agree tbai; a ROiie Township area SSES is needed to eliminate 

excessive I/I frb• the Rome Toiwnshl.p area ot the collection 

system and to meet the require-ents and objectives of this 

Decree, the Board shall comp.e~~ such a SSES, and shall compie~• 

the implementation of all Le~:--~~jations of the SSES, no later 

than four (4) years from the - ··~ : entry of this Decree. 

--



10. No later than six (6) years from the date of entry 

of this Decree, the Board shall complete installation of an 

equalization basin for the collection system to eliminate all 

unauthorized bypasses ot and overflows from the Board's sewer 

system and wastewater treatment plant. The equalizat~on basin 

shall be constructed in accordance with the following schedule: 

a. By October 30, 1994, the Board shall complete 
a Phase I Feasibility Study of the proposed 
equalization basin ~for the collection system, 
and shall submit a report detailing the 
findings and recommendations of the study, 
and the projected costs of such an 
equalization basin, to U.S. EPA and.Ohio EPA; 

b. By October 30, 1995, the Board shall complete 
the preparation of detailed engineering 
designs and specifications for the proposed 
equalization basin for the collection system. 
and shall submit the designs and 
specifications to U.S. EPA and Ohio EPA; 

c. By April 1, 1996, the Board shall submit an 
application for a permit-to-install the 
proposed equalization basin, with detailed 
engineering designs and specifications, to 
the Ohio EPA; 

d. By Kay 1, 1997, the Board shall commence 
construction of the proposed equalization 
basin tor ~he collection system; and 

e. No later than six (6) years from the date :r 
entry ot this Decree, the Board shall 
coaplete installation of the equalization 
basin for the collection system. 

In the event that the Plaint1f fs and the Board disagree over ' 

the findings and recommendat•ons of the Phase I Feasibility s~. :. 

or the projected costs of an equal1zation basin; or {b) the 

engineering 'designs and spec;~ . .:Jt1ons for the proposed 

-... 
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equalization basin, any party may invoke the procedures set forth 

in Section XII (Dispute Resolution). 

11. From the date of lodging of the Decree to no later 

than six (6) years from the date of entry of this Decree, the 

only bypasses and overflows from the Board's sewer system or 

wastewater treatment plant which are authorized under this Decree 

are those that occur when the conditions 'in (a) - (c) below are 

present: (a) durinq wet weather periods; (b) when the flow in the • 
sewer system exceeds the capacity of the sewer system or the 

wastewater treatment plant and the Board has used all available 

capacity of the sawer system or the plant; and (c) when the Board 

has used best efforts to minimize the possibility and extent of 
.·· \ 
\ ) any bypass. In addition to requirements of (a) throuqh (c) 

·above, the only bypasses from the Board's sewer system or 

wastewater treatment plant which are authorized under this Decree 

are those that occur from the following stations: 

STATION HUMBER 

·oPK00002002 
OPK00002003 
OPK0000200!5 

OPK00002006 

DESCRIPTION 

Pump Station No. 6 
Pump Station No. 7 
Manhole East of Pump 

Station No. 3 
Pump.Station No. 8 

Nothing in tbi• paraqraph shall limit or affect the Board's ~:~-· 

to assert any defense provided for at 40 C.F.R. S 122.4l(m) (4. 

(1992). 

At all times, the Board lS prohibited from bypassing or 

overflowing;from its sewer s.,.s-:e~ or wastewater treatment pld-· 

for the purpose of achieving ::-p~~dnce with effluent limita· 



() 

- ' 

- 13 -

in its effective NPDES Permit. In the event of any authorized or 

unauthorized bypass of or overflow from the Board's sewer system 

or wastewater treatment plant, the Board shall submit notice of 

sue~ bypass or overflow to the u.s. EPA and Ohio EPA in 

accordance with the requirements of Part III, Items 11 and 12 of 

the General Conditions of the Board's NPDES Permit No. 

OPK00002*AD, an~ any modifications or renewals thereof, and shall 

include a description of all efforts taken to minimize the 
• 

possibility and extant of any bypass or overflow. 

12~ Colllllancinq no later than six (6) years from the 

date of entry of this Decree, the Board shall have identified all 

bypass and overflow points.and have eliminated all bypasses of 

" ) and overtlowa from the Board's sewer system and wastewater 
\ _) 

treatment plant. The bypass and overflow points which shall be 

eliminated include, but are not limited to, the followinq 

stations: 

STUIOK NQMBD. 

OPK00002002 
OPK00002003 
OPK00002005 
OPK00002006 

DESCRIPTION 

Pump station No. 6 
Pump Station No. 7 
Manhole East of Pump Station No. 
Pump Station No. 8 

13. Upon entry of thls Decree, the Board shall 

immediately and continuously co~ply with the requirements of 

sections 301 and 402 of the Act 1nd Ohio Revised Code 6111.04 1- ! 

6111.07, the rules and reguldt~Jns ad9pted under these statutes 

and the Board's currently eftecci~e NPDES Permit No. OPK00002·~

and any renew~ls or modifica':; :-s :~ereof, provided, however. 

that the elimination ot all _- 1 .·- :~;:ed bypasses and overfl:-

-.. 
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and the elimination of excessive I/I shall be accomplished in 

accordance with Section V of this Consent Decree. 

VI. FUNDING 

14. Compliance with the terms of this Decree by the 

Board is not conditioned on the receipt of grant funds, loans, or 

outside sources ot funding. In addition, Defendant's failure to 

comply with the terms of this Decree is not excused by the lack 

ot qrant funds, loans, or outside sourc?s of funding, or by any 

delay in the processing of any applications for the same. 

VII. REPORTING 

15. Beginning with the calendar quarter ending 

December 31, 1993, and tor every calendar quarter thereafter 

until termination of this Decree in accordance with Section 

XVIII. below, the Board shall submit to U.S. EPA and Ohio EPA a 

written proqress report. Each quarterly report shall be 

submitted no later than the last day of the month following the 

close of the quarterly reporting period. Each report shall 

contain the following information for that quarter: 

a. the status and progress of the preparation ~~ 
plans and construction of improvements 
required under Section V. above; 

b. a projection of the work to be performed 
under Section V. during the next two calen~~r 
quarters; 

c. identif1c4tLon of any items that might af!e.· 
timely completion of the requirements unce~ 
Section v. abOve; 

d. a descr1ptLon of all efforts the Board w1~. 
undertake -:o ~Ln1mize any anticipated de~ 1.' 

in the t~~•lt completion of the require~e-·, 
under Sec-:.:.., ,. . above; and 

,, .. 
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a detailed description of all efforts the 
Board has taken to eliminate the private 
sources of I/I described in paraqraph 7 
above. 

Notification pursuant to this paragraph shall not excuse any 

failure to perform any requirement of this Decree. 

16. Within ten (10) days following the deadline for 

any requirement under Section v. of this Decree, the Board shall 

submit to U.S. EPA.and Ohio EPA written notice that the action 

has been taken or completed, as required. If the action has not 

been taken or. completed as required, the Board shall submit 

written notice to U.S. EPA and Ohio EPA stating the reasons for 

any failure timely to complete a requirement, and the probability 

of meetinq the next deadline in the schedule. The notice shall 

also describe the actions to be taken or that are beinq taken to 

return the proqram to schedule. Notification pursuant to this 

paraqraph shall not excuse any failure to perform any requirement 

of this Decree. 

17. Nothinq in this Decree affects the reporting 

requirement• sat forth in the Board's NPDES Permit. The Board's 

compliance with reporting requirements set forth in this Decree 

shall not aerve aa a justificatLon for not complying with any 

reporting requJi: .. ent set fortn ln the NPOES Permit. 

VII I. ... ., .. , ., 
• • , • w PENALTY 

18. The Board shd .. ~~Ya.civil penalty of fifteen 

thousand dollars ($15,00o.oo· p~us interest thereon, calculd:el 

at the statutory judgment ~ :- · - · •; "'. r .l te provided for in 28 L' 

S 1961, from the date of lo·~; ~ :h1s Decree, to the date . 

-·. 
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payment in full as provided in this Section. Payments under this 

Decree are not tax deductible. The civil penalty shall be paid 

in the manner set forth in the subsequent four paragraphs. 

19. Within thirty (30) days of the entry of this 

Decree, the Board shall pay twenty-five percent ·(25%) of the 

total civil penalty (the sum of $3,750 plus accrued interest) to 

the United States. Such payment shall be made by cashier's or 

certified check, made payable to "TreaslJrer, United states of 

America", bearing a notation as to the civil docket number of 

this action, and sent to: 

United States Attorney's Office 
Southern District of Ohio 

Civil D~vision 
220 U.S. Post Off ice and Courthouse 
Fifth and Walnut streets 
Cincinnati, Ohio 45202 

Simultaneous with the making of such payment, the Defendant sha:. 

submit copies of the cashier's or certified check and the payment 

transmittal letter, identifying this Decree and this paragraph, 

to the below addresses: 

Branch Secretary 
Air, Water, Toxics and General 

Law Branch 
Office of Regional counsel, 

Region v . 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
77 West Jackson Blvd. 
·Chicaqo, IL 60604-J 590 

United States Jepartment 
of Just!.-:e 

Environment and ~atural Resources 
Division 

P • o . Box 7 6 1 l 
Ben Frankl in . · 1 ~ • Jn 

Washington, o ~~044 
Attn: Jeff er,. • . :.rjon 



! . . 

- 17 -

D.O.J. No. 90-5-1-1-3634 

20. Within thirty (30) days after entry of this 

Decree, the Board shall pay twenty-five percent (25~) of the 

total civil penalty (the sum of $3,750 plus accrued interest) to 

the State of Ohio. Such penalty shall be paid by certified or 

cashier's check, payable to "Treasurer, State of Ohio", and shall 

be tendered to Janis Miller, Administrative Assistant, Office of 

Attorney General, Environmental Enforcement Section, 30 East • 
Broad Street, 25th floor, Columbus, Ohio, 43215. 

21. Within six (6) months of the date of entry of this 

Decree, the Board shall pay an additional twenty-five percent 

(25%) of the total civil penalty (the sum ot $3,750 plus accrued 

, \ interest) to the United States. sue!) payment shall be made by 
· .. __,} 

cashier's or certified check in the manner set forth in paragrapr. 

19 above. 

22. Within six (6) months of the date of entry of this 

Decree, the Board shall pay an additional twenty-tive percent 

(25%) of the total civil penalty (the sum of $3,750 plus accrued 

interest) to the State of Ohio. such penalty shall be paid by 

certified or cashier's check in the manner set forth in paragrJ~~ 

20 above. 

23. Interest shall accrue on the unpaid balance of i~. 

amounts due, including any stipulated penalties due, at the 

statutory judgment interest •3te provided for in 28 u.s.c. 

s 1961 •. 
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IX. SATISFACTION OF CLAIMS AND EFFECT OF SETTLEMENT 

24. Compliance with the terms of this Decree and 

payment of the civil penalty shall be in full satisfact"ion of the 

United States' and State of Ohio's civil judicial claims against 

the Board as specifically alleg.ed in the respective complaints 

and as set forth in the Joint Stipulation between the parties, 

through the date of lodging of the Decree. 

X. STIPULATED PENJ.LTIES 

25. If the Board fails to complete any of the 

requirements contained in paragraphs 6, 7, a, 9 or 10 of this 

Decree by the dates spec.ified therein, the Board shall be liable 

to pay stipulated penalties as follows: 

(A) $100 per day for each requirement not timely met. 

for the first 60 days; 

(B) $200 per day for each requirement not ~imely met. 

for days 61 through 90; 

(C) $!500 per day !or each requirement not time.ly met. 

tor days 91 through 120; 

(D) $750 per day !or each requirement not timely met 

for days 121 through 180; 

(S) $1000 per day for each requirement not timely -e· 

tor each day of vLolation beyond the lSOth day. 

26. If the Board faLls to complete any of the 

reporting requirements cont a L ned Ln ·paragraphs 11, 14 or 15 ·-: = 

this D~cree~by th~ dates spec~tLed therein, the Board shall ~e 

liable to pay stipulated pend.· .~s dS follows: 

.. -.. 
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(A) $100 per day for each reporting requirement not 

timely met, for the first JO days; 

(B) $150 per day for each reporting requirement not 

timely met, for days 31 through 60; 

(C) $250 per day for each reporting requirement not 

timely met, for days 61 through 90; 

(D) $375 per day for each reporting requirement not 

timely met, for days 91 ~hrough 120; 

(E) $500 per day for each reporting requirement not 

timely met, for each day of violation beyond the 

120th day. 

27. It there are any discharges from Defendant's sewer 

system or wastewater treatment plant in violation of the 

requirements contained in paragraph 12 under Section V. above, 

the Board shall be liable to pay stipulated penalties as follows: 

(A) $500 per day per discharge, for the first 30 days; 

(B) $1000 per day per discharge, for each day of 

violation beyond the JOth day. 

For purposea of thi• paragraph, each day of unauthorized 

discharC)- .Ull be counted towards the JO-day amount regardles~ 

ot whetb9r.uch unauthorized discharges are continuous. 

21. Payaent of stipulated penalties shall be paid 

within FIFTEEN (15) DAYS of dny violation of this Decree. Fiftr 

percent (50t) of the stipulated penalties due shall be paid t~ 

the United Stat•• and fifty percent (SOt) shall be paid to the 

State of Ohio, in the manner s•t f~rth in paragraphs 19 and 
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this Decree. In addition, a letter summarizing the violations 

for which payment is being made shall be enclosed with all checks 

and all copies of these checks. Such payment shall be together 

with accrued interest at the statutory judgment rate provided for 

in 28 u.s.c. S 1961, if payment is not made within the time 

specified. 

29. Any stipulated penalties paid pursuant to this 

section shall not be counted toward anY.portion of the civil 

penalty which the Defendant is required to pay in accordance with 

Section VIII. of this Decree. Stipulated penalties to be 

assessed pursuant to this section shall continue to accrue during 

any action of the United States or the State of Ohio to collect 

money owed to it under this Decree. 

30. The stipulated penalties set forth above shall r.ot 

preclude the use of, any other remedies or sanctions available to 

the United States or State ot Ohio by reason ot the Board's 

failure to C011ply with any requirements ot this Decree or any 

applicable law. 

XI. RIGHT OF ENTRY 

31. U.S. EPA and Ohio EPA, as well as their author1ze·j 

agents, CJe11tractors and consultants, shall have the right of 

entry into and upon the Board's collection system and wastewater 

treatment plant at all reasor.do~e tlmes, upon presentation of 

credentials, tor the purposes )(· 

a. Monitorlr~ ~~e progress of activities 

required by this Decree; 
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b. Verifying any data or information required to 

be submitted pursuant to this Decree; and, 

c. Obtaining samples, and, upon request, splits 

of ·any samples taken by the Board or its consultants. 

32. This provision in no way expands upon, limits or 

affects any riqhta of entry and inspection held by either 

Plaintiff pursuant· to any applicable federal or state laws, 

regulations, or permits, including, bu~ not limited to, the 

provisions at 33 u.s.c. S 1318 and Ohio Revised Code S 6111.05. 

XII. QISPUTE RESOLUTION 

33. The dispute resolution procedures of this section 

shall be the exclusive mechanism to resolve any technical 

-) disputes arisinq from the Board's implementation of the 

_requirements under paraqraphs 6, 7, 8, 9, and 10 of this Consent 

Decree. However, any actions within the exclusive jurisdiction 

of the Ohio Environmental Board of Review, as set forth at o.R.c. 

S 3745.04, are not subject to dispute resolution. 

34. Any technical dispute which arises under or with 

respect to th• Board's implementation of the requirements of 

paraqrapba 6, 7, 8, 9, or 10 of this consent Decree shall in ":!"\• 

first inst:ance be th• subject of informal negotiations between 

th• parti .. to th• dispute. Th• period for informal negotiat~o~• 

shall not exceed 20 days from the time the dispute arises, un~.,, 

it is modified by written aq~eement of the parties to the 

dispute. The dispute shall te :=nsidered to have arisen when 

party sends the other partie~ 1 -~.:ten Notice of Dispute. 

-· 
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35. In the event that the parties cannot resolve a 

dispute by informal neqotiations under the preceding Paragraph, 

the Board shall present a written notice of such dispute to the 

Plaintiffs. The written notice of dispute shall set forth the 

specific points of dispute; the position of the Board and the 

bases therefore including, but not limited to, any factual data, 

analysis or opinion supporting that position and any supporting 

documentation relied upon by the Board;,and any actions which the 

Board considers necessary to resolve the dispute. The parties 

shall follow the following dispute resolution procedures, unless 

they aqree otherwise: 

a. If the Plaintiffs concur with Board's 
r· . \ 

, ) position, they shall provide written notice of such concurrence 
'-.. ___ _,, 

to the Board at the earliest practicable opportunity. 

b. If the Plaintiffs do not concur with the 

Board's position, the Plaintiffs will use their best efforts to 

notify the Board within twenty (20) business days of receipt of 

the written notice fro• the Board. Piaintiffs' notice shall 

include, but is not limited to, any factual data, analysis, OL 

opinion .upportinq Plaintiffs' position and any supporting 

documentation relied upon by the Plaintiffs. Any failure by ~~~ 

Plaintifta to provide notice ·• L ~h i.n twenty (20) business days 

shall not affect any rights ~f ~he Plaintiffs under this DecLee 
.. 

includinq their right to not .:~nc·..lL with the Board's position 

The parties and their represent.itLves shall meet within twentt 

(20} days of the Plaintiffs' - -·. :e in a good faith effort t~ 
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resolve their differences, unless the parties agree to a 

different time frame. If the parties are still unable to resolve 

their differences, the Board shall provide any additional 

information requested by the Plaintiffs for. their consideration 

within fourteen {14) days after such meeting(s). 

c. U.S. EPA shall maintain an administrative 

record of the dispute. It shall contain all statements of 

position, including supporting documentation, that are submitted • 
pursuant to this paragraph, and any other documents that form the · 

basis of the Plaintiffs' decision. 

d. If after holding such meeting(s) and 

considering the Board's submissions, the Plaintiffs still do not 
/. \ 

) concur with the Board's position, they shall use their best 

efforts to notify the Board in writing within thirty (30) 

calendar days. However, any failure by the Plaintiffs to prov1je 

notice within thirty (30) calendar days shall not affect any 

rights of th• Plaintiffs under this Decree, including their r1gr.t 

to not concur with the Board's position. 

e. With respect to a dispute under paragraph ~ 

as to whether a Ro .. Township area SSES:is needed to eliminate 

excessive %/I froa thia area of the collection system, within 

fifteen (15) days of the Pla1nt1f fs' written notification, e1~~.e: 

party may file a petition w1tn :~1s court that sets forth the 

specific points of dispute, :~e position of petitioner(s) and 

bases therefore, the efforts -Jje by the parties to resolve :-~ 

dispute, the relief requeste ~ ' - ! my actions which the 
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petitioner(s) considers necessary to resolve the dispute. The 

nonpetitioner(s) may file a response to the petitioner's notice 

of judicial appeal. 

f. With·respect to any other dispute covered by 

this Section, the Plaintiffs' decision shall control unless, 

within fifteen (15) days of receipt of the Plaintiffs' written 

determination, the Board files a petition with this court that 

sets forth the specific points· of dispute, the position of the 
~ 

Board and the bases therefore, the efforts made by the parties to 

resolve the dispute, the relief requested, and any actions which 

the Board considers necessary to resolve the dispute. The 

Plaintiffs may file a response to the Board's notice of judicial 

' ) ,, _/ appeal. 

g. In proceedings on any dispute governed by 

this section, the Board shall bear.the burden of proof. Judiclai 

review of any dispute governed by this section shall be on the 

administrative record compiled pursuant to subparagraph 35.c. 

above. 

36. Th• invocation of formal dispute resolution 

procedur .. under this section shall no~.extend, postpone or 

affect in any way any obligatlon of the Board under this Conse~~ 

Decree which has not been speclf Lcally disputed in accordance 

with this Section. 

XIII. PER..'1II OBLIGATIONS 

37~ This Decree dces not authorize or approve the 

construction of any physical ~:r~~tu~e or facilities, or the 

-.. 
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modification of any existing treatment works or sewer system. 

Approval for such construction or modification shall be by permit 

issued by the Ohio EPA or such other permits as may be required 

by .applicable federal, state, or county laws, rules, or 

requlations. 

38. This Decree is not and shall not be interpreted to 

be a permit or modification of any permit issued pursuant to 33 

u.s.c. S 1342, and/or Ohio Revised Code Chapter 6111, nor does • 
this Decree relieve the Board of any obligation to apply for, 

obtain and,- except as otherwise specifically provided in 

paragraph 11 and paragraph 13 of this Decree, comply with any new 

or existing NPDES permit. This Decree shall be interpreted such 

~ that provisions of any NPDES permit issued to the Board shall 
\) 

become the permit provisions enforceable under this Decree. 

XIV. NON-WAIVER PROVISIONS 

39. The Plaintiffs do not by their consent to the 

entry ot this Deer•• warrant or aver in any manner that the 

Board's compliance with this Decree will result in compliance 

with the provision• ot the Act, Chapter 6111 of the Ohio Revised 

Code or the Board's NPDES perr:nt. Notw.i.thstandin9 U.S. EPA's 

Ohio EPA'• review or approval ~f any plans, the Board shall 

remain solely re•ponsible for :~~pliance with the Act and the 

Board's NPDES permit. 

40. The Plaintiffs l~ ~ot waive any rights or remed.~~ 

available to} them for any v~ :. 1~ .;n by the Board of Federal :r 

state laws, regulations, or :~nditions. Nothing in 
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Decree shall be construed to limit the authority of the United 

States and/or the State of Ohio to seek relief for claims or 

donditions not alleged in their Complaints, including~ but not 

lim~ted to, criminal liability. 

41. Except as.otherwise specifically provided in 

paraqraph 11 and paragraph 13 of this Decree, compliance with the 

terms of this.Decree in no way limits the responsibility of the 

Board to comply with any Federal, State or Local law or 

requlation or permit. 

42. Nothing in this Decree shall limit or affect the 

Board's right to defend against any allegation of noncompliance 

with the requirements of this Decree including, but not limited 

(_) to·, the right to assert that defense provided for at 40 C.F.R. S 

122.41(m) (4) (1992). 

XV. PUBLIC COMMENT 

43. Th• parties agree and acknowledge that final 

approval by the United States and entry of this Decree is subJect 

to the requirements of 28 C.F.R. section 50.7, which provides f~r 

public notice and an opportunity for public comment. 

XVI. SCBMITTALS 

44. Except as specified otherwise, when written 

notification, written certification, or reports are required 

pursuant to this Decree to be s~bmitted to the United States. 

U.S. EPA, the State ot Ohio. ;n~o E?A~ or the Board, it shal: 

sent to the addresses below: 
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As to the united States: 

Chief, Environmental Enforcement Section 
Environment and Natural Resources Division 
u.s. Department of Justice 
P.O. Box 7611, Ben Franklin Station 
Washington, o.c. 20044 
OJ. No. 90-5-1-1-3634 

and 

United States Attorney 
southern District of Ohio 
220 U.S. Post Office and Courthouse 
Fifth and Walnut Streets 
Cincinnati, Ohio 45202 
Reference Case No. C-1-91-302 

As to U.S. EPA: 

Eloise Hahn (or designated successor) 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 

Region v 
Water Division 
compliance Section {SWCC-15J) 
77 West Jackson Boulevard 
Chicago, Illinois 60604-3590 

As to the State of Ohio: 

Terrence s. Finn 
Assistant Attorney General 
state of Ohio · 
Environaantal Enforcement Section 
30 East Broad Street, 25th Floor 
ColWllbua, Ohio 43266-0410 

and 

Joann Montgomery (or designated successor) 
Ohio Environmental Protection Agency 
Southaa•t District Off ice 
2195 Front Street 
Logan, Ohio 43138-~0Jl 

As to Ohio EPA: 

Jqann Montgomery ;,r jesiqnated successor) 
Ohio Environmental ?~~tection Agency 
Southeast District =~~ .;e 
2195 Front Street 
Logan, Ohio 431J8- · 

.. -
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As to the Board for Notices under Section XII: 

Lawrence County Board of ·county Commissioners 
#1 Veterans Square 
Ironton, Ohio 45638 

and 

J.B. Collier, Jr. {or designated successor) 
Lawrence County Prosecuting Attorney 
#1 Veterans Square 
Ironton, Ohio 45638 

and 

Paul w. Casper, Jr. {or des~gnated successor) 
Stephen N. Haughey (or designated successor) 
Frost and Jacobs 
Suite 2500 
PNC center 
201 E. 5th Street 
Cincinnati, Ohio 45202-4182 

At to the Board on All Other Matters: 

Lawrence County Board ot county Commissioners 
#1 Veteran• Square 
Ironton, Ohio 45638 

and 

Ti• Porter (or designated successor) 
Union-Rolle Township• Sub-Sawer District 
1117 Rear Third Avenue 
P.O. Box 400 
Che•apealce, Ohio 45619 

45. Written notitication, written certification, ~r 

reporta required to be submitted under. this Decree shall be 

d•••ed .W.itted on the date postmarked by the U.S. Mail, ·.,,;.:-

proper po•ta9e affixed. If another means is used to deliver i 

report, notice or cartificatLon, it shall be considered del~-•:•: 

upon the date received at t~• Ohio EPA or U.S. EPA office. 

" .. 
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XVII. MODIFICATION 

46. There shall be no modification of this Consent 

Decree without written agreement of the parties and order of this 

Court, except that nothing in this paragraph shall limit or 

affect the right of any party to seek relief from judgment 

pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 60. 

XVIII. TEBMINATION 

47. This Decree shall terminate upon the court's 
• 

granting a motion by the Board, after sufficient opportunity to 

respond to such motion by the Plaintiffs, and after certification 

by the Board to Plaintiffs and the court that the Board has (a) 

completed the requirements set forth in Section v. above; (b) 

eliminated all unauthorized bypasses and overflows at all points 

in the sewer system and wastewater treatment plant; _and (c) pa1j 

all penalties due hereunder. 

XIX. COSTS OF SUIT 

48. Each party shall bear its own costs and attorney·~ 

fees in this action incurred prior to the entry of this Decree. 

SO ORDERED: 

Date 

.. 

Honorable CARL B. RUBIN 
u.s. District Judge 
United States District Cour~ 
Southern District of Ohio 
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WE HEREBY CONSENT TO THE ENTRY OF THIS CONSENT DECREE, 

For The Board of Commissioners of Lawrence County, Ohio 

By: 
Date 

Data 

Data 

For the United States of Nnerica 

Date 

Date 

-.. 

ATTACI{E:; 
REsc:.:.::-: :~.; 

Authorized Representative 
of the Board of Commissioners 

r Lawr ce county, Ohio 

Frost and Jacobs 
Suite 2500 
PNC center 
201 E. 5th Street 
Cincinnati, OH 45202-4182 

counsel for the Board of 
Commissioners of Lawrence 
County, Ohio 

JO _ C. CR EN, 
nvironmental Enforcement 

Section 

T 
.J 

Environment and Natural 
Resources Division 

U.S. Department of Justice 

GORDON 
RUVOLO 

~nv1ronrnent Enforcement Se~: 
s. Department of Justice 

·~~ Franklin Station 
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Data 

Date 

-OatJ 1 

For th• sta,t1 ot Ohig 

Dat/4 

- Jl -

.. -

PO Box 2611 
Washington, DC 20044 

EDMUND A. SARGUS I "JR·. 
United States Attorney 
Southern District of Ohio 

GERALD F. KAMINSKI. 
_Assistant U.S. Attorney 
Chief, Civil Division 
220 U.S. Post Office and 
courthouse 
Fifth and Walnut Streets 
Cincinnati, Ohio 45202 

.J~e.,~,i .J-~~1 
SltEVEN A. HERMAN ~ 
Assistant Administrator ~r 

Enforcement 
U.S. Environmental Protect::~ 

Agency 
Washington, o.c. 20460 

ALOASV. ADAMKUS 
Regional Administrator 
U.S. Environmental Protect~:

Agency 
Region V 
Chicago, Illinois 60604 

LEE FISHER 
ATTORNEY GENERAL OF OHIO 

-~~;z 
-:ERRENCE 5. FINN 
.:3L'SAN ASHBROOK 
~ssistant Attorneys Gener, 
:J E. Broad Street, 25t~ 
::~~~bus, Ohio 43266-0~: 



LAWRENCE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

TERRY NULL, President 

GEORGE PATTERSON, Member 

KAREN MATNEY SIMMONS, Member 

Stephen N. Ha.ushey 
Frost & Ja.cobs 
p 0 Bo.x S7IS 
Cinc:inna.ti1 Ohio 45201-571s 

December 11, 1993 

KATHLEEN R. FRALEY, Administrator 

TAMIL. GOODY. Clerk 

This is to certify du.t the following action wa..s ca.ken by the Lawrence County 
Boa.rd of Commissioncn while in regular sc.s.sion a.t their mutins held on December io, 
1993 and recQTded in Commi.ssioneu' Journal 6S"1 Pa.~ 181. 

Motion by Mr. Pa.tt&Tson Second by Mr. Null 

To a.pprow a.nd Commi.ssion President Terry Null .sign the Con.sent Deau for Cue 
No. C-1-g1-301 a..s recommended by Fro.st & J a.cob.s. 

Mr. Null-yes Mr. Pa.tter.son---ye.s Mr.s. Simmons-yes 

Courthouu • Vtteraru Squart • lroncc" - ...,.._ • 5'538 • Phont1: (614) 5JJ.4J00/533-4Y 
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TABLE 7 
RECOMMENDATIONS ANO COST AliALYSIS 

I S!WER S!WER !STIKAT!D,P!AK I/I SS ::::s:-
RZPLAC! S!ALIHO GPO REKAIN'IN'G' GiU. " · • 

LOCATION (Ll") (Ll") REHovto j GPO : REH~.:-::; 

Rt 7 MH 304 303 I to 985 -o- 3 I I 76,800 2.876,970: : . : ; : Abandon Septic Tank 232 Ben Street - - 1,000 2,87S,97C' - . - -.......... -Down• pout• at 224 Ben Street - - 5,000 2,870,97oi .~ ---.J .... ,., .. 

Ba•e Retaining Wall 224 Ben Street - - 7,100 2,863,8701 - -. ... . "" ..... Old Catch B&•in at 222 Ben Street - - 374,000 2,489,879 .-. ... - . 
.; ... - .. 

Collap•ed Pipe 250' w of HH 303 10 2,489,4701 - 400 s.2:: 
Oown•pouts &t 316 Ben Street - - 6,700 2,487,770 J. : : s 
Oown•pouts at 400 Rockwood - ·- 10,100 2,472,670 '"' \.,J. J. -Downspouts &t 410 Rockwood - - 10,100 2,462,570 "' - .. ... . ... .. .. 
Place LH 330' E ot KH 3018 10 - • 2,462,570 -Detect 412 Rockwood - - l,000 2,461,570 ....... --
Catch B&•in front 412 Rockwood 20 - 374,000 2,097,670 J. : ~ ~ 
Repair pipe behind 43 Rockwood 10 - 1,000 2,096,670 2. : : : 
Repair pip• &t ! end aeri.al sewer - - 1,000 2,095,670 ).::: 
Repair pip• at w end aerial sewer - - 1,000 2,094,670 J -- . - . -

• .. ) 
Remove roots and grout. 40 - ao· 

I 
- 40 +175 2,094,495i . ... - .. 

! ot MH 300 I 
1..ocate MH·between JOOA and 299 - - • 2,094,495' 

J,2ooj2.09L29s1 Inspect lateral repair 437 Rockwood - - -
Repair lateral to NW Pickett cone. - - 900 2,090,395! .. 
Cover/frame of KH 299 - - 1,002,500 l,087,895: . 
Repair detects w of 515 Rockwood JO - 2,900 1,084,995: - .. -

I ' 
Remove root• and qrout joint• - 80 850 l,084,445. .. 

00· w of MH 297 to 160' w 
Repair sewer behind 523 Rockwood 20 - l,400 1,082,7431 
Oownspouts 535 Rockwoqd - - 6,700 l".076,045 I 

Replac·e ·•ewer w from KH 296 and 80 - 998,300 77,745: 
separat.e from scorns 

l 
-

I '!OTAL: ~ . ~ 5 5 I 120 l,116,126 
I I 

I I 
' 

• No reduction ot I/I will :es~~~ trom these correctior.s 
However, they should be made s~ the sewer may be proper~: 
maintained. 

*• These items were repa1:ej =1 
Maintenance ;·Crew during t!"'.e ~. -e 
wera performed. 

j Lawrence County SSES 

J •• 

the Union-Rome Sewe: 
t~e internal inspectio~s 
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TABLE 4 

Manhole Remediation Schedule -
Proctorville, Ohio 

Manhole No. Location ·RECOMM.ENOAT !ON S ::.:;: 

400 Front ' Cheanut Replace with solid lid ' S90.CC 
I 

401 Front St. Clean & Seal Manhole Walls, etc. i s:Jc. :c 
: 

402 Su•an ' Alley Replace with solid lid• ! --
I 

403 Alley ' Alley Replace with solid lid I 

etc.! 
s2:s.:: 

Clean & Seal Manhole Wall•, 

404 Alley & Alley -- ! --
405 State St. Rep lac• with •olJ.d lid I S90.:: 

' •olid lid 

I 
406 State St. Replace with s 2:. s --. -

Clean & Seal Manhole Wall•, etc:. 

407 State St. Replace with •olid lid 1 S90.:: 

408 State St. -- ! --
409 Prichard & Che•nut -- l --

) ' 

410 Elizabeth ' Chesnut -- .. 

- -
412 Shirkey ' Alley I -- .. 

--
413 Alley r. Alley I -- --! 

-
415 Front r. Thomas ' -- .. 

i 
- -

416 Thcm&• St. -- .. 

-
417 Grant St. Replace with •olid lid 

418 ThOIU8 ' Alley I --
419 or ant ' Alley : --' 

422 rront ' Grant --
423 Grant ' lli£&bet~ --
425 Elizabeth ' Waln ... : Replace with •olid lid 

.. 

426 Elizabeth ' AL •t -c Q 0 0 4 'i 0 
427 Alley ' Alley Repl&c,. wi.th solid lid 

-
428 Thomas ' "l :. • ~ --

- -
429 Alley ' AUey --

--. ,. . -;:.ec.ed duci.nq i.nvest i.qat. i.c -
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PROCTOIMllZ SSD 

LOQnoM 

Chestnut k Prichard 

Chestnut &: Pricb.ard 

Chestnut. t Prichard 

St.au Route 1 t Sbirk11 

State Route 7 Dat \o MB 40S 

St.au Rout. 7 aCl"Oll from KB 405 
Culnrt by noww llLop 

LOQftOM 

Corntr of l'ablut Sl t Proat St. 

113 lalzlut. Stnet 

St&tt st. a1 nrt Stati• 

St.au Sl by Pin Station 

!mpty lot west ol 311 Ellla'bttb St. 

V acut Lot bebia4 40I Fl'lllt St. 

lbi.u t brOYD tnil« OD ua. 
ri't'tr sidt ol 1r01lt Street 

Comer ot 'fabaut St. • mm St. 

Soath md of Al18' t S- St. 

!mpt7 lot ... of 311 llbaMUa Sl 

408 1r0Dt StrM 

98 Pricllld .,.. 

225 lli11Wll .... 

309 1.lilabetb ~ 

101 Thom.at Str..t 

JU Elizabeth Strttt 

Paricinc lot bebind pott 0Ulc1 

t'nilar lot 1cro11 from 
t8 hoat Street 

l 12 fa!Dut StrM\ 

213 Cunt S\rM\ 

CORR!CTlONS RWT!D TO SI'OR\L SOU fl(PROvtla:NTS 

PROSl.Oi 

Storm drain on corner 

CulTert Oil N! corner 

Cu.lTert Oil SE corner 

Cat.ch Balin· 

Catch Bum 

Cat.ch Bum 

PROPDn OIMD IOU 

PROBID 

Old dowmpout. Wt 

Old dcmupo\lt lilt 

Old dowmpout Wt 

Abandoned lint in nc&At lot 

Role iD. yvd of TICIAt lot 

()pa abuidontd lint 

Opai Stwtr Latenl 

Old dowaspout at demolisb.td house UL rear 

. Opt9 lint I TICID.t lot 

Ope ~t.anl UL Taeant. lot 

Cort~ ~ coHrin& opea cleuout 

DoYTlSpO\lt t reu ol 'bide. 

I Rau do~oul 
I 

L&r&e bolt UL back yard 

Ltound trailer skiJ't.U1C (lateral leak?) 
.. 

t'wo QQnspouts 

Alon« reWninc nil 

P'oWld&UOll draui 

·TABLE 5 
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TABLE 5 co 

PRocrolVllU SSIS PROPERTY OTNIR YORK 

t.oanotf PROBLEll I ·::Si . 

~o~ Front stntt Alone west side of basement wall S1.200 
110 Ja.Inut Strttl Alone west ride of build.inc $: 200 

403 Elizabeth st.--Apb. Alone nst side of bllildin1 $: 200 

Bt1r11 Prichard t llizafflb faltt Ket.er ont t 11Dilaq aJona 11ley ROI t l.200 

308 El1sabttb Street Hole ill back yud D.lll bush $1200 

403 l2llaHtlL St.--Aptl. two hola iA faactcl-lD ar11 t1 ~co 

405 IDcm Strllt Holt iA back yard s~ 500 

223 lllcua Street ' Holt iA back yard s: ~~o 
104 rffT'I str• Alone 1auth lid• of battmaat walb S: ~oo 

30e Elizabeth Strlft t'w'O hola ill back ylld uu llley s i ~~o 
213 1l1cm Stnet Holt iA bact JUd s: ~00 
223 1llcus Strttt Btwn steps au buemat nil; rtll of house S: ~oo 

217 Jou.a Stntt lat.er metar ' s: : :o 
' Stall st. behind Plr• Stati01l Kole ill yard s. : :a 

305 TJlcus . Street Holt m back yard 
I 

'. : :c 

315 Trollt Strttt Holis aroud sidtnlk llld buslla I 
s~ ~ :o 

' 

TOTAL 129 4 JO 

.. - C05? IMCLUDID Df STOl1' SOD IMPIOVEKIHTS 

L0004\'2 
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68-5 

68-3 

68-2 

65-3 

64A-2 

62-3 

62-2 

62-1 

51-5 

233-1 

j232c-2 

l232c-1 

I 228-5 

221A-2 

200~2 

200-1 

CHESAPEAKE SSES 

INFLOW /INFILTRATION SOURCES 

LOCA1':COH 
!:ST. I/ I I 

<gpd> I 

St. Rt. 7 ' Nancy St. 87650 

Harbor Dr. ' St. Rt. 7 22860 

Harbor Dr. ' St. Rt. 7 65750 

Half ' River Dr. • 15 

River Drive~ Box 193 110 

249 Hiqh Ave.· · 945 

245 Hic;h Ave. 850 

KJ.qh Ave. ' Half St. 6700 

264 Hic;h Ave. 450 

s. I:. cor. 5th St. ' 3rd Ave. I 1125 

S.R. 7 ' 2nd Ave. 25780 

S. A. 7 ' 2nd Ave. 1550 

318 sv-• c:reek <•· of 4th Ave.) SS 

We•C ra.anta Aft. 375 

Ccuner s.a.1 ' S.lt.52 22350 
.. 

c:o.ner s.a.1 ' S.R. 52 30 

TOTAL 236525 

PUBLIC OWNED 

---

EST !KA'IE:O 
PROBLEM COST 

C:Jlverc s~:.:ca 

Catch Ba•i.n s 5. ::o 

Culvert s~s.:ca 
' 

Hole 1.n Yard I s 3.:oo I 

' 
Covered Manhole ' I s sea ! 

Yard Drain s ~.sea 

' Storm Grate s 5. 5 :JO 

.Storm Grace : s ~.SuO 

Driveway Drain 5:0 

Curb Drain - ....... . -. -~" 

Curb Drain 3 .; s .... " 
• J..., 

Catch Basin i 
.... ~ __ ..., 

Water Ke1:er Lid 'i ::a 

Water Meter Ll.d l : : :J 

Catch Ba•in -... - .; 

--
Hole In Ground - . 

•• J 

- . -. 
-
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